

# **Government of Tamil Nadu**







# e-Waste Policy 2010





# **Government of Tamil Nadu**

# e-Waste Policy 2010

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

1	Objective and Scope of the Policy	5
1.1	Objectives of the Policy	5
1.2	Scope of the Policy	5
2	Policy Statement	6
2.1	Elements of the Policy	6
3.	Strategies and Action Programme	7
3.1	Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR)	7
3.2	Regulations and Regulatory Reforms	8
3.3	Environmentally Sound Management of e-Waste	8
3.3.1	Standards for recycling and residue disposal	9
3.3.2	Reduction in e-Waste generation	9
3.4	Collection Systems for e-waste	10
3.5	Capacity building	11
3.5.1	Research and Development	11
3.6	Restriction on the use of hazardous substances (RoHS)	11
3.7	Information Education Communication (IEC) Awareness,	
	Education, Training and Information	12
4.	Mechanism for Implementation of the Policy	13
4.1	Roles and Responsibilities of Stakeholders	14
4.1.1	Government/ Govt. Departments	14
4.1.2	Tamil Nadu State Pollution Control Board (TNPCB)	15
4.1.3	Corporations/ Municipalities/ Town Panchayats/ Panchayats	15
4.1.4	Manufacturer/Producer	15
4.1.5	Dealers/Retailers	16
4.1.6	Bulk Consumers	17
4.1.7	Consumers	17
4.1.8	Collection Centers/ Collection Agents	17
4.1.9	Dismantlers	18
4.1.10	Recyclers – Informal Sector	18
4.1.11	Recyclers – Formal Sectors	18
4.1.12	Industry Associations	18
4.1.13	Research and Development Organizations (R&D)	19
4.1.14	Non Governmental Organizations (NGOs)	19
4.2	Advisory Committee	19



#### 1. Objective and Scope of the Policy:

The alarming increase in e-waste generation and the consequent threat of environmental degradation arising from unauthorized recycling establishes the urgent need for an effective regulatory framework. In the absence of effective legislation or regulations to deal with this emergent situation and also to protect public interest, the Government of Tamil Nadu is now introducing a Policy on e-waste.

#### 1.1. Objectives of the Policy:

The e-waste Policy is formulated with the following objectives:

- Minimize e-waste generation.
- Utilize e-waste for beneficial purposes through environmentally sound recycling.
- Ensure environmentally sound disposal of residual waste.

#### 1.2. Scope of the Policy:

This Policy sets forth the position of the Government of Tamil Nadu on e-waste management by identifying the roles and responsibilities of all stakeholders including the public to manage the e-waste in an environmentally sound manner in Tamil Nadu, through reduction in the generation of e-waste and providing a system for collection, segregation and recycling of e-waste.

The Government of Tamil Nadu envisions to effectively address the growing e-waste problem with contribution from and co-operation of all stakeholders. This is planned to be achieved in a structured manner by:

- Adopting the e-waste Policy
- Detailing the Action Programme for implementing the Policy with definite time lines.
- Setting up of a Monitoring Committee to monitor the implementation of the Policy.
- Promoting E-waste recycling as a socially good and viable industry in Tamil Nadu.
- Creating awareness and involving all stakeholders to be responsible in fulfilling their role in environmentally sound management of e-waste.
- Involving the Small & Medium Enterprises (SMEs) in Tamil Nadu in environmentally sound management of e-waste.

#### 2. Policy Statement:

The Government of Tamil Nadu (GoTN) recognizes that e-waste is a material resource and its management should encompass the short and long-term economic, environmental, and social costs and benefits. GoTN is committed to implement the "Guidelines for Environmentally Sound Management of e-waste" as approved by the Ministry of Environment and Forests (MoEF), Government of India vide Letter No. 23-23/2007-HSMD dated 12th March 2008 and the obligations from similar National Policies and regulation on e-waste from time to time. It may prescribe more stringent norms as deemed necessary considering the local conditions. The Policy is intended to:

- Minimize e-waste generation.
- · Utilize the e-waste for beneficial purposes through environmentally sound recycling.
- · Ensure environmentally sound disposal of residual waste.

#### 2.1 Elements of the Policy:

The policy elements are identified as follows:

#### Regulations and Regulatory reforms

The policy shall enable compliance with the existing regulations and identify the areas for regulatory reforms.

#### Environmentally Sound Management of e-waste

The policy shall facilitate in the management of e-waste through the 3R principle of Reduce, Reuse and Recycle e-waste ensuring that such wastes do not cause any adverse effects to the environment or human health.

#### Capacity building

E-waste management activities shall be strengthened through capacity building and continued efforts on Research and Development.

#### Partnership Programmes

E-waste management involves many stakeholders in its value chain and the policy envisages the need for partnership programmes involving these stakeholders.

#### Awareness and information dissemination

The Policy shall provide for creating awareness and dissemination of information. E-waste by nature being a post-consumer waste, there is need for community participation in e-waste management activities.

#### 3. Strategies and Action Programme:

The elements identified in the Policy are realized through strategic interventions based on the legislative framework and concrete actions involving the State and local level authorities and other stakeholders.

- (1) It will be the duty of all those, who generate e-waste to adhere to the Policy and dispose of their e-waste in Collection Centers authorized by TNPCB and/or Recycling Facilities registered with Central Pollution Control Board (CPCB).
- (2) Tamil Nadu Pollution Control Board would be responsible for the implementation and monitoring of the Policy.
- (3) The Government of Tamil Nadu (GoTN) will encourage and promote necessary infrastructure for collection, storage, utilization, recycling and disposal of e-waste.
- (4) All stakeholders in the value chain of e-waste management are responsible to ensure environmentally sound management of e-waste.
- (5) Public-Private-Partnership (PPP) model may be encouraged for setting up facilities for the collection, storage and recycling of e-waste.

The following Strategic themes and action programmes are envisaged through the policy with the focus on on-going activities and the new initiatives required. Detailed action plans will be prepared for each of the activities based on specific requirements.

#### 3.1. Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR):

In Keeping with the Supreme Court's Policy in Writ Petition (C)No.657 of 1995 (With S.L.P. (C) No. 16175 and C.A. No. 7660 of 1997) by Research Foundation for Science Technology and Natural Resources Policy vs Union of India and another in which the polluter pays principle has been clearly laid out.

The policy recognizes the Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) as an essential element in e-waste management system. EPR is the environmental protection strategy that makes the producer of electrical or electronic equipment responsible for the entire life-cycle of his product including the 'end-of-life management' of the product through its take-back, recycling and final disposal. The producer needs to ensure that e-waste from the products developed by the producer is handled without adverse effects to human health and the environment.

The following actions are necessary:

- (1) EPR to be made an integral part of the policy.
- (2) Ensure that the producer of electrical and electronic equipment is responsible in providing services to the post-consumer stage of the product life-cycle.
- (3) To make it possible that the producer(s) sets in place a system and finances the costs involved in the 'end-of-life management' of their products including disposal of e-waste.

- (4) To make it possible for a consortium or an association of producers and other stakeholders to finance and organize a system for 'end-of-life management' of all e-waste.
- (5) The producer to facilitate in setting up collection centers for collection of e-wastes either individually or collectively and ensure that e-waste thus collected are channelized to the registered recyclers for environmentally sound recycling.
- (6) Producers to facilitate and enable application of reverse logistics for their products in order to facilitate use in manufacturing, refurbishing and recycling of the 'end-of-use products' in an environmentally sound manner.
- (7) Producer to submit annual returns of the sales as well as e-waste collected.

#### 3.2 Regulations and Regulatory Reforms:

The implementation of the regulations and compliance with the conditions laid down are essential for managing e-waste. The lack of regulations may cause impediments in effective implementation. The policy shall facilitate proposal and framing of regulations for e-waste management. In view of the high recyclable potential of e-waste, the regulations should focus on e-waste recycling in an environmentally sound manner.

The following action will be taken:

- (1) Ensure compliance with all applicable Central, State and Local laws and regulations by the stakeholder in the e-waste value chain.
- (2) Review the existing regulations from time to time, identify the lacunae and provide suggestions for regulatory reforms after holding consultations with the stakeholders.
- (3) Propose newer regulations from time to time with better scientific understanding encompassing economic and social requirements.
- (4) Ensure that the regulatory framework prescribes appropriate measures to safeguard occupational and environmental health and safety (OEHS).
- (5) Provide requisite legal instruments to prevent illegal dumping of e-waste into Tamil Nadu.

#### 3.3. Environmentally Sound Management of e-waste:

Environmentally sound recycling refers to recycling without leading to adverse impact on environment and health. E-waste recycling in India is mostly carried out in the informal or the unorganized sector that use polluting technologies leading to extensive environmental degradation and adverse effects on health of the workers engaged in recycling activity. The use of environmentally sound technologies needs to be encouraged in order to increase efficiency in processes, maximize recovery of materials and conserve energy subsequently reducing waste generation. The policy shall enable access to such technologies and make the informal sector accountable.

Environmentally sound recycling under Public Private Partnership will be encouraged

Self Help Groups(SHGs) will also be encouraged to take up this activity.

Environmentally sound recycling of e-waste can be achieved through the following measures:

- (1) E-waste recycling only in authorized/registered units.
- (2) Ensure use of environmentally sound technologies to maximize recovery and minimize waste generation.
- (3) Appropriate Technologies for recycling e-waste to be accessible to recyclers.
- (4) Informal sectors to be provided legal recognition, brought into mainstream recycling activity and made accountable.
- (5) Training and skill development to be encouraged for using environmentally safe operations in handling e-waste.

#### 3.3.1 Standards for recycling and residue disposal:

In order to encourage environmentally sound recycling of e-waste, these operations have to be carried out in controlled conditions by providing appropriate standards for emissions, effluents discharges and residue disposal. Environmental standards have to be evolved for various levels of operations in e-waste recycling industries. In case of any notification of the National Standards for recycling and residue disposal, the same will be made applicable and if need be, more stringent norms prescribed.

- (1) Efforts to ensure that e-waste recycling units comply with the emission and effluent standards and prevailing residue disposal norms.
- (2) Specific standards will be formulated as required for e-waste recycling units based on the technologies used.
- (3) Continuous monitoring system to be installed for monitoring compliance.
- (4) E-waste recycling units shall be provided with a a compliance certification mechanism and this in turn may be outsourced through an independent agency if required so by the TNPCB.

#### 3.3.2. Reduction in e-waste generation:

The 3R principle advocates - Reduce, Reuse and Recycle such that the product generates

less waste or no waste, thereby reducing the waste destined for disposal and the burden on the environment. The strategy for reduction in e-waste generation applies to different levels in the e-waste value chain.

The reduction in the generation of e-waste will be achieved through the following:

- (1) Ensure reduction in e-waste generation at all levels of stakeholders.
- (2) Marketing of products with maximum life span and indicating the same on the product labels.
- (3) Maximization of the use and reuse of electrical and electronic equipment, thereby delaying e-waste generation.
- (4) Encouraging authorized refurbishment of used electrical and electronic equipment to extend the life of the equipment.
- (5) Maximizing the recovery of materials from e-waste, thereby reducing residues from e-waste recycling.

Obsolete equipment, where suitable and usable, may be considered and given as donation to non-profit/charitable institutions.

#### 3.4.Collection systems for e-waste

The flow of e-waste is through a complex supply chain, comprising of many stakeholders. Therefore, there is a need for a collection system for e-waste. The collection system can be organized individually or collectively with the participation of stakeholders and can even involve communities and Community Based Organizations(CBO). This system shall facilitate collection and segregation of e-waste and channelize such waste to the recyclers for environmentally sound recycling.

Following action will be initiated for establishing collection systems:

- (1) Encourage CBO for establishing collection systems for e-waste.
- (2) Public-Private-Partnership (PPP) model may be encouraged to establish collection facilities.
- (3) Individual manufacturers or producers may organize the collection of end-of-use product of their own brand or outsource this activity to authorized recyclers and collectors of e-waste.

### 3.5. Capacity building

E-waste management is at a nascent stage of its development and it involves multistakeholders of a diverse nature. Capacity Building is required for updating the knowledge and practices for the benefit of all stakeholders and growth of the system. In this process, the available resources need to be augmented to suit the requirements of the e-waste recycling sector.

The following actions shall be taken for initiating capacity building activities:

- (1) A review of the existing institutional capacities in the State shall be carried out and
- (2) Suitable programmes to be formulated for enhancing the capacities; new institutions and agencies may be identified for the same.
- (3) Efforts for collaborative activities shall be explored involving stakeholders, national and international agencies.
- (4) Continuous up-gradation of knowledge and skills of the persons involved in the various activities associated with e-waste management shall be organized through dedicated capacity building programmes.

#### 3.5.1. Research and Development

Research and Development activities for developing innovative recycling technologies and their application in the field are essential for advancement in the recycling sector. It is also essential to compile information on the Best Available Technologies (BAT) worldwide in order to promote recycling activities to meet international standards.

The following actions are envisaged:

- Research and Development shall be directed to develop indigenous technologies for recycling e-waste.
- (2) Linkages shall be established with research institutes and the Government to enable flow
- of information on the availability of viable technologies for processing e-waste.
- (3) Areas of research shall be prioritized on specific need-based research activities and these may be initiated in co-operation with academic and research institutions.
- (4) Research shall be directed towards energy efficient technologies and calculation of carbon footprints in recycling activities.

#### 3.6. Restriction on the use of hazardous substances (RoHS)

The electrical and electronic equipments are known to contain hazardous substances such as lead, cadmium, mercury, polychlorinated biphenyls (pcb) etc., which are being restricted for use

in the products to make these products safer for use and recycling (RoHS compliance). The European Union (EU) Directive 2002/95/EC dated 27th January 2003 restricts the use of hazardous substances in electrical and electronic products and these are applicable for those imported into the EU. Many other countries have also adopted the RoHS compliance requirements. In the absence of a national legislation/ regulation binding for RoHS compliance, products sold in the Indian market may contain hazardous substances. The policy shall facilitate the achievement of global standards in reduction of hazardous substances present in all electrical and electronic equipments and the certification of such equipments.

The following plan of action will be pursued for RoHS compliance for the products manufactured in Tamil Nadu and sold in India:

- (1) Targets shall be set for reduction in use of hazardous substances in electrical and electronic equipment.
- (2) Detailed information on hazardous constituents in the equipment shall be provided in the product information
- (3) In the event of reduction in hazardous substances used in electrical and electronic equipments, the product information shall be updated accordingly.
- (4) Imports or placement in the market for electrical and electronic equipment shall be permitted only for RoHS compliant products.

#### 3.7.Information Education Communication (IEC)

Awareness needs to be created among all stakeholders in the e-waste value chain i.e., beginning from commercial and domestic users, industries, recyclers, government agencies and the public on environmentally sound management of e-waste. Training and awareness programmes need to be organized involving other stakeholders, i.e., NGOs, specialists and professionals. The following Training and awareness programmes will be organized for different stakeholders educating them on various aspects of e-waste handling:

(1) Consumer awareness programmes to be organized on the selection of eco-friendly and green products.

(2) Information to be provided to consumers to deposit the end-of-life used equipments (ewaste) in the designated collection boxes or collection centres. The location of such facilities along with the address and contact details to be provided to consumers.

- (3) E-waste collectors and waste pickers to be given specialized training through identified organizations for handling different categories of e-waste.
- Professional Training to be imparted to workers employed/likely to be employed in e-waste recycling units, through well-designed training programmes and participants to be certified.
  Such training to be made a prerequisite for employment in e-waste recycling units.

- (5) Industries may be encouraged to conduct awareness programmes for their employees and their families.
- (6) Awareness programmes on safe disposal / recycling of e-waste may be included in the curriculum / co-curriculum at the School and College level.
- (7) All types of media will be used in the awareness campaign.

#### 4. Mechanism for Implementation of the Policy

The Government of Tamil Nadu, IT department and the Tamil Nadu Pollution Control Board are responsible for formulation and implementation of the policy respectively.

The policy identifies the following stakeholders with roles and responsibilities in the e-waste value chain:

- 1) Government / Government Departments / Agencies
- 2) Tamilnadu Pollution Control Board
- 3) Corporations / Municipalities / Town Panchayats / Panchayats
- 4) Manufacturer / Producer
- 5) Dealers / Retailers
- 6) Bulk Consumers
- 7) Consumers
- 8) Collection Centers/Collection Agencies
- 9) Dismantlers
- 10) Recyclers Informal Sector
- 11) Recyclers-Formal Sector
- 12) Industry Associations
- 13) Research & Development Organizations
- 14) NGOs

#### 4.1. Roles and Responsibilities of Stakeholders

All stakeholders in the e-waste value chain have both specific and collective responsibilities . Some of the key responsibilities under the policy are enumerated in this section. However, it must be stated that this list is not exhaustive and will be reviewed from time to time.

#### 4.1.1.Government/Govt. Departments

Government of Tamil Nadu (GoTN) shall be responsible for the formulation of the e-waste management policy and its effective implementation. The GoTN shall ensure that a monitoring system is in place for effective implementation of the policy. Government and the government departments being bulk consumers of electronic and electrical equipments must ensure compliance with the policy.

GoTN shall take the following steps to facilitate the implementation of the policy:

- (1) Create infrastructure for collection, utilization and disposal of e-waste in an environmentally sound manner.
- (2) Encourage establishment of Collection Centre(s) under Public Private Partnership (PPP) framework.
- (3) Mechanism for collection and disposal of orphaned e-waste generated from unbranded and mix of brands shall be the responsibility of agencies determined by GOTN. Local bodies shall play a prominent role. However, the final disposal shall be only through those authorized to do so. Whenever necessary, local bodies and other Government bodies may follow due procedure as determined by TNPCB and set up their own e-waste disposal facility or enter into a Public Private Partnership for the same (PPP).
- (4) GoTN shall promote pollution prevention practices by reducing e-waste generation and encouraging the use of eco-friendly technologies to produce Green Products and provide incentives to reduce e-waste.
- (5) Promote recycling and reuse of e-waste which has a high resource potential by suitable measures of awareness creation among various stakeholders and capacity building among the informal sector for up-gradation of such facilities.
- (6) Mandate labeling of electronic products for declaration of hazardous material contents.
- (7) Mandate the Government Departments and Undertakings being a bulk customer to ensure proper disposal of their e-waste as per the following options:

(i) Equipments suitable for use may be donated to government, non-profit or charitable organisations.

(ii) Disposal only through authorized collection agencies or recyclers with CPCB registration by inviting tender.

(8) Government departments and Undertakings to include a paragraph on E-waste generated and disposed as part of their annual policy note.

#### 4.1.2. Tamil Nadu State Pollution Control Board (TNPCB)

Tamil Nadu Pollution Control Board is vested with the responsibility for effectively implementing this Policy and will also coordinate with different agencies responsible for the effective implementation of the policy.

- 1. TNPCB shall lay down the requirements and procedure for a recycler to be registered with TNPCB. These modalities and requirements may also be amended from time to time to ensure that the regulations are appropriate and upto date.
- TNPCB shall maintain the list of registered recyclers in the State put up in the public domain.
- 3. Ensure compliance of the policy and regulations
- 4. Ensure monitoring by the Port and the Custom authorities in ensuring that e-waste from other countries are not reaching the State for disposal.
- 5. Prohibit the disposal of e-waste in landfills.
- 6. Prohibit unauthorized collection and recycling e-waste.
- Encourage coordinated actions by groups of communities or industries in research, development and dissemination of knowledge for environmentally sound management of e-waste.
- 8. Wherever deemed necessary by TNPCB, ELCOT and TNeGA shall assist TNPCB in the implementation of this policy.

#### 4.1.3. Corporations/Municipalities / Town Panchayats / Panchayats

The role of Corporations / Municipalities / Town Panchayats / Panchayats is important for organizing the collection of e-waste especially from household and other end users and segregation of e-waste from other household waste. They will also have to arrange to send collected waste to authorized collection centres or registered recyclers for recycling.

#### 4.1.4.Manufacturer/Producer

Manufacturer/Producer refers to entities that manufacture and/or sell and/or resell electrical and electronic equipment either manufactured by itself or by others or imported under its brand name. Manufacturer/Producer will be required to strive to reduce the environmental impact of their products through influence on product design, choice of material, manufacturing processes and product support system including product take-back at the end-of-life of the product.

The responsibilities of the producer in e-waste management are as follows:

- (1) The producer of electrical and electronic equipment shall be required to provide services to the post-consumer stage of the product lifecycle and organize a take-back system for all used electrical and electronic equipments (e-waste) of their own brand.
- (2) The producer shall finance costs involved in the management of e-waste from his products.
- (3) A consortium or an association of producers and other concerned stakeholders shall finance and organize a system for 'end-of-life management' of all e-wastes.
- (4) The producer shall facilitate setting up of collection centres either individually or collectively for collection of e-waste.
- (5) The producer shall ensure that e-waste thus collected is channelized to the registered recyclers for environmentally sound recycling.
- (6) Producer shall provide information to the consumers to deposit the end-of-life used equipments (e-waste) in the designated collection boxes / collection centres. The location of such facilities along with the address and contact details shall be provided to consumer along with the product.
- (7) Producers may also give incentives to their customers for product return.
- (8) Producers shall enable application of reverse logistics for their products in order to facilitate use in manufacturing, refurbishing and recycling of the 'end-of-use products' in an environmentally sound manner.
- (9) All manufacturers / producers of electrical and electronic equipment shall maintain an inventory of all the individual items despatched including the inventory of rejected items. Annual report of the same shall be submitted to TNPCB.
- (10) Producer shall submit annual return of the sales and the e-waste collected.

#### 4.1.5.Dealers / Retailers

Dealers receive equipment from Manufacturers and sell the equipment to the consumer or to the next level retailers. The dealers authorized by producers shall be responsible to collect used electrical and electronic equipment (e-waste) by providing the consumer a box / bin or demarcated area to deposit e-waste. The dealers should ensure that the e-waste thus collected are safely transported back to the producer or to an authorized collection center as the case may be. The dealers may also promote buy-back or exchange schemes offered by the producers.

### 4.1.6.Bulk Consumers

Bulk Consumers are bulk users of electrical and electronic equipments such as Central or State Government Departments, Public Sector Undertakings, Banks, Private Companies, Multinational Organizations etc. Such bulk consumers should ensure that used equipments (ewaste) which are not fit for the intended use are deposited with the dealer or authorized collection in order to be sent to a registered recycler.

- (1) The bulk consumers may also be permitted to auction e-waste, but, only to authorized collection centres or registered recyclers or avail take back services provided by the producers.
- (2) Bulk consumers may organize their own collection centres/agencies and warehouses to collect and store e-waste. However, they must ensure that the e-waste thus collected are either channelized through the take-back scheme to the manufacturer or sent to registered recyclers.
- (3) The bulk consumers of such equipments should maintain a record of inventory of all the individual items received and dispatched including the inventory of rejected items. An annual report of the same should be submitted to TNPCB by them.

#### 4.1.7.Consumers

Consumer refers to any person using electrical and electronic equipments primarily for personal, home or business use excluding bulk consumers. All consumers are responsible to ensure that their end-of-the-life electrical and electronic equipment are disposed in the prescribed manner in accordance with the instructions provided along with the equipment.

#### 4.1.8.Collection Centers / Collection Agents

They are the intermediaries between the E-waste generators and the dismantlers / recyclers. These centers may be set up individually or jointly by producers, importers, refurbishers and recyclers in pursuance of their responsibilities to collect E-waste and to channelize the same for reuse or refurbishment or recycling. Collection agents are responsible to transfer e-waste collected by them only to authorized recyclers/ refurbishers / dismantlers. GoTN may envisage a Public Private Partnership model involving other stakeholders to set up collection centers.

#### 4.1.9.Dismantlers

Dismantlers are authorized to dismantle used electrical and electronic equipments (e-waste) into their components and to hand over these to authorized recyclers. The dismantler should ensure that no damage is caused to the environment during storage, dismantling and transportation of e-waste. The dismantling processes should not have any adverse effect on the health of the workers and environment. The dismantled e-waste should be segregated and sent to the registered recyclers for processing and recovery of materials. The dismantler shall not process any e-waste for recovery of materials.

#### 4.1.10.Recyclers – Informal Sector

The Informal Sector plays a major role in collection and segregation. The informal sectors may be engaged in the collection and segregation alone and are not permitted to undertake further processing such as dismantling and recycling. These informal sectors may be identified and efforts taken to convert them to be a part of the formal group or association which can be allowed to dismantle e-waste and provide such dismantled e-waste to formal recyclers. These units may be authorized and brought to the main stream.

#### 4.1.11.Recyclers – Formal Sectors

Recyclers are authorized to process e-waste or components thereof for recovering various constituents for reuse. The recyclers should be approved and authorized by the State Pollution Control Board. They should have obtained necessary consent for establishment and operation of the facility and authorization under hazardous wastes rules. Such recyclers are required to be registered with the Central Pollution Control Board and ensure strict compliance of the terms and conditions of authorization / registration required. Recyclers may also facilitate collection and transportation to recycling facility from bulk consumers and other collection agencies.

#### 4.1.12.Industry Associations

Industry Associations represent collective group of specific industry segments. They shall be encouraged to share their responsibility to promote and help in implementation of the policy among their member organizations. They should also play an effective role in creating awareness through seminars and conferences with support of the Industry and Government.

#### 4.1.13. Research and Development Organizations (R&D)

The R&D organizations shall be facilitated to carry out specific research to evolve cost effective recycling technologies and effective adaptation of the best available technologies. The processes should provide for energy efficiency and maximize recovery of resources leading to reduction in waste destined for disposal. R&D methods should also help in calculating carbon footprints

#### 4.1.14.Non Governmental Organizations (NGOs)

The NGOs have a very important role to play in the e-waste cycle as most of the recycling, is currently in the unorganized sector. The NGOs have been very active in imparting training to the unorganized sector. The services of NGOs will be utilized to hand-hold the unorganized sector to be brought into the mainstream.

#### 4.2. Advisory Committee

The Government of Tamil Nadu shall constitute an' E-Waste Policy Advisory Committee" in order to

- Oversee implementation of this Policy.
- Minimize any unintended consequences due to e-waste handling.
- · Encourage decisions consistent with the national policies and regulations
- Provide flexibility to adopt the changes required from time to time.
- Review inputs from all stakeholders.
- The Committee may review the implementation of policy annually
- The Committee may advise revisions in the policy from time to time.

(This document has been compiled by Department of Information Technology, Government of Tamil Nadu)

#### For further details contact:



## Secretary to Government of Tamil Nadu,

Information Technology Department Secretariat, Chennai 600 009. Tamil Nadu, India. Tel: 91-44-2567 0783 E-mail: secyit@tn.nic.in



#### Director, Tamil Nadu eGovernance Agency,

490, Anna Salai, Nandanam, Chennai 600 035, Tamil Nadu, India. Tel: 91- 44 - 2433 6643 Fax: 91- 44 - 2433 7381 E-mail: ceotnega@tn.gov.in



#### Managing Director,

Electronics Corporation of Tamil Nadu Ltd.(ELCOT), (A Government of Tamil Nadu undertaking) 692, Anna Salai, Nandanam, Chennai 600 035, Tamil Nadu, India. Tel: 91-44-6551 2330, Fax: 91-44-2433 0612 E-mail: md@elcot.in

Visit us at: www.tn.gov.in; www.elcot.in